
222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

Licensing Sub Committee Agenda
Monday, 8 June 2015 at 9.30am
Committee Room 1 - Town Hall, Queens Road, Hastings TN34 1QR

If you are attending the Town Hall for this meeting, please enter the building via the Community 
Contact Centre entrance.

For further information, please contact Emily Horne on 01424 451719 or email 
ehorne@hastings.gov.uk 

Page No.

Members of the Licensing Sub Committee to sit on this hearing 
are:

Councillors Charlesworth, Roberts and Sinden with
Councillor Webb in reserve.

1.  Appointment of Chair for this meeting
2.  Apologies for Absence
3.  Minutes of the meeting held on 12 January 2015 1 - 6
4.  Declarations of Interest
5.  Notification of any additional urgent items
6.  Application for the Review of a Premises Licence: Zar Zar Bar,

91-92 Queens Road, Hastings
9 - 60

7.  Application for a Premises Licence:  Grand Elektra,
53-57 Robertson Street, Hastings
(Corporate Director, Environmental Services)

61 - 116

8.  Additional urgent items (if any)

Public Document Pack



2



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

12 JANUARY 2015

LSC. 1

Present: Councillors Sabetian, Dowling, Lee and Roberts (Chair)

8. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THIS MEETING 

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Licensing Committee, the Chief Legal 
Officer invited nominations for the appointment of Chair for the duration of the 
meeting.  Councillor Sabetian moved that Councillor Roberts should take the Chair.  
This was seconded by Councillor Dowling. 

RESOLVED (unanimously) that Councillor Roberts be appointed as Chair 
for the duration of the meeting.

9. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

None.

10. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15 JULY 2014 (FOR INFORMATION) 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 15 July 2014
be approved and signed by the Chair as a true record.

11. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None.

12. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ADDITIONAL URGENT ITEMS 

None.

13. APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF GAMBLING PREMISES LICENCES:  
ADULT GAMING CENTRE AREAS 1 & 2, FLAMINGO ARCADE, EAST 
BEACH STREET, HASTINGS 

Councillor Roberts set out the procedure that the Sub-Committee would adopt (in 
accordance with Standard Practice), all parties confirmed they understood this.

The Chair agreed after hearing from the Chief Legal Officer, that parties had 
requested time for discussion and that once all parties had made their submissions a 
short adjournment would take place.

The Corporate Director, Environmental Health, submitted a report on a review of a 
gambling premises licence at Adult Gaming Centre Areas 1 & 2, Flamingo Arcade, 
East Beach Street, Hastings.

An amendment to the wording of the report was noted to paragraph 11 of the report as 
follows: the words ‘November 2014’ were replaced with the words ‘October 2014’. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

12 JANUARY 2015

LSC. 2

Councillor Sabetian asked Mr Brown if the Council had written to the premises licence 
holders advising they segregate the areas of family entertainment from the adult areas 
within the premises and he sought clarification on the physical separation of the two 
areas.  Mr Brown confirmed the segregation of the two areas was included in the 
conditions of the licence and defined in law. The conditions were appended to the 
report under Appendix C of the agenda.   He stressed that both areas have to be 
separate and should be clearly defined by signage.  Mr Brown stated that it is common 
practise that where there is a break between the two areas some premises put up a 
barrier and operate a buzzer to alert staff when customers move between the two 
areas.  He said this advice is supported by the Gambling Commission and is enforced 
by the Council.  

Mrs Davies, Licensing Officer, who brought the review made her submission on the 
grounds of the licensing objective “Protecting Children and other vulnerable persons 
from being harmed or exploited by Gambling”. She said the review was necessary 
because the premises had failed two test purchases. The tests were designed to test 
the effectiveness of underage gambling policies and procedures in the absence of 
adequate data provided by the licensees themselves.  

The first test purchase took place in April, 2 young people (aged 16yrs and 17yrs) 
were allowed unchallenged access to the premises and were able to use restricted 
machines. The premises failed; the compliance manager interviewed and a warning 
letter followed. Mrs Davies said they were assured that procedures would be tightened 
up.  The second test purchase took place 6 months later in October, during half term 
week, 2 different young people (both aged 15yrs) were allowed unrestricted access to 
the premises and allowed to play restricted machines; they were not challenged by 
staff.  The witness statements were appended to the report under Appendix A of the 
agenda.  Both operations were led by staff from Hastings Borough Council supported 
by officers from both Sussex Police and the Gambling Commission.  

Mrs Davies said that 5 other premises were also tested, and failed the initial test 
purchase, but the Flamingo Arcade was the only premises that failed twice.   She went 
on to say the review was fully justified because the compliance manager had already 
been warned after failing the first test purchase and she was promised that 
procedures would be tightened up. 

In support of the review, Mr Isaacs from the Gambling Commission made his 
submission on the licensing objective section 1(c) of the Act, “protecting 
children….from being harmed or exploited by gambling’, and the Commission’s codes 
of practice issued under section 24 of the Act, specifically the social responsibility 
code provision 3.2 concerning “access to gambling by children and young persons”.  
He said the premises was controlled by dual regulation. The two adult gaming centre 
premises licences in respect of the two units situated within the Family Entertainment 
centre, were issued by the local Authority. The separate operator licence was issued 
by the Gambling Commission and reinforced by conditions that the operator has a 
duty to comply with”.  He said it is an offence under S47 of the Gambling Act 2005 for 
a young child to enter an age restricted area, the operator has a responsibility to 
manage the premises legally.  Due to repeated failings he said he fully supported the 
review.

Page 2



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

12 JANUARY 2015

LSC. 3

Mr Lucas, Solicitor, representing Flamingo Arcade said the arcades were managed by 
2 directors who between them had 80 years of combined experience and owned a 
number of seaside arcades.  He stated that this was the first occasion they had been 
brought to a review. He said their company fully accepted the obligations of their 
licences. Furthermore, two years ago they held two training sessions for staff which 
covered basic training principles with an emphasis on underage training.  He said that 
training had obviously not been sufficient and that following the failed test purchases 
in April they had a meeting with Jan Hall who was responsible for compliance and Mr 
Brown, Licensing Manager.   Since Jan Hall left the company in July 2014, compliance 
was the responsibility of Mr Moore.  Mr Lucas said that Mr Moore felt that procedures 
were robust enough to prevent test purchases in other premises and that there had 
been some training, but it was not enough.  

Moving forward, Mr Lucas said they had looked to identify areas in which training 
could be improved along with the physical arrangements of the premises, to ensure 
procedures were more robust for all of their premises.  Mr Lucas read out a list of 
actions, the majority of which had taken place.  These included:- the separation of the 
family entertainment centre and the adult gambling area; Staff will have radio pagers 
so that they can communicate with each other at all times; CCTV is to be mounted on 
site and remotely transmitted to Mr Moore and his colleagues; Additional signage will 
be placed in the entrance and foyer; Refresher training will be provided to all staff;  All 
staff will be presented with badges ‘Are You 21’ or similar and asked to wear them at 
all times.  Mr Moore added that emphasis was on compliance, they would check the 
age of people entering the premises under ‘Challenge 21’ and if ID was not provided 
they would ask them to leave.    

Mr Isaacs from the Gambling Commission asked Mr Moore if he was a member of the 
Trade Association and asked if the test purchase was a mandatory requirement of the 
Trade Association. In his response, Mr Lucas said it was not mandatory and that the 
BACTA toolkit manual provided a summary of all requirements and refers to various 
policies and procedures.

Councillor Sabetian asked Mr Lucas why he thought the failings took place.  Mr Lucas 
said the company previously did not have sufficiently robust procedures in place and 
they had not put enough emphasis on members of staff regarding compliance. 

Councillor Sabetian asked if they thought there was enough staff to ensure the checks 
and monitoring was carried out?  Mr Moore said that every member of staff attended 
training.  Additional staff were employed during the summer season, and they attend a 
2 hour induction regarding procedures. Mr Lucas added that emphasis was placed on 
a test at the end of the training session, so staff had to demonstrate they understood 
it. He said this information was monitored. 

Councillor Dowling asked whether the cashier’s desk was in full view of the adult 
entertainment area and whether the cashier would be able to see who was going to 
the adult area.  Mr Lucas said the reason they looked at providing pagers was the 
cash box was not always manned.  On the pager system he said you could guarantee 
that someone was always there.  

Page 3



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

12 JANUARY 2015

LSC. 4

With the agreement of the Chair, the meeting was adjourned to allow for discussions 
concerning additional conditions to the licence.  

Following discussions with the Licensing Officer, Mr Lucas read out a number of 
suggested conditions that had been proposed for the committee to consider.

The Chair sought confirmation from Mr Isaacs from the Gambling Commission that he 
was happy with the recommended conditions.  Mr Isaacs confirmed he was in 
agreement.
 
In his summary, Mr Brown said the review was supported by the Gambling 
Commission, the Council had taken a robust stance against underage gambling and 
they would continue to carry out test purchasing.  Other premises owned by Mr Moore 
which failed first time were checked again to ensure they were operating correctly. 

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the review be upheld subject to the following 
conditions:-

1. Physical barrier (ie: supermarket metal type or similar) acceptable to the 
Licensing Authority and operated in conjunction with the existing monitored 
alert system to be put in place within 3 months.

2. Compulsory third party test purchasing on a twice yearly external system 
and the results to be reported to the Local Authority.  In the first 12 months 2 
additional internal test purchase operations to be carried out.

3. No machine on the unlicensed family entertainment centre to be sited within 
1 metre of the adult gambling centre entrance.

4. New and seasonal staff must attend induction training.  All existing staff 
must attend refresher training every 6 months.

Reasons:

The licence holder has made significant improvements to their operating 
procedures and policies.  

All staff have received further training with a commitment for a regular training 
programme to be delivered.  

Pagers are in place to bring to staff attention anyone entering the Adult 
Gambling Centre.  Staff can then check that the person is the appropriate age to 
enter.  Staff can keep in contact with each other by a radio controlled system.

The Committee have had regard to the guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State and its own policy.

Page 4



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

12 JANUARY 2015

LSC. 5

The Chair thanked all parties involved in coming to an agreement.

14. ADDITIONAL URGENT ITEMS (IF ANY) 

None.

(The Chair declared the meeting closed at. 11.30 am)

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Review Procedures - 2015

Licensing Review Procedures
1. Introductions

 Chair introduce Members and Officers.  Invite applicant / Licence Holder / 
representatives to table.  Ask to introduce themselves.

 Chair explain procedure.  Ask if Parties received report and ready to proceed. 
 In the event that any Party to the hearing fails to attend Members consider whether to 

adjourn the hearing or to proceed in the Party’s absence.

2. Summary of report by Licensing Manager / Officer.

3. Applicant / Representative (for eg Environmental Health, Police, Trading Standards) 
submissions on the application / call any witnesses. 
Any Questions for Applicant / Representative 
 Statutory Consultees?
 Licence holder?
 Officers?
 Members?

4. Statutory Consultees (for eg Police, Fire Service, Environmental Health) submissions 
on the application.  
Any questions for Statutory Consultees from
 Applicant / Representative?
 Licence holder?
 Officers?
 Members?

5. The Licence Holder’s submission on the application.  
Any questions for Licence Holder from
 Applicant / Representative?
 Statutory Consultee?
 Officers?
 Members?

6. Do Members require any clarification from the Licensing Manager / Officer?
If clarification given, questions on clarification only from:
 Applicant / Representative?
 Licence holder?
 Statutory Consultees?
 Members?

7. Summaries (if required)
 Licensing Manager / Officer summing up 
 Statutory Consultees summing up 
 Licence Holder summing up
 Applicant/Representative summing up 

8. Decision Making
 Members retire to discuss the application, propose and second a recommendation and 

vote on this. 
 They may take legal advice from the Legal Advisor.  The Legal Advisor will advise the 

Parties of any legal advice given to the sub-committee.  No other person may retire with 
the Sub-committee.  

 The decision is announced by the Chair giving full reasons for the decision, together with 
any conditions, which are to be attached to the grant of the licence or the reasons for a 
refusal of the application. 

Page 7

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank



 Report Template v28.0

Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee

Date of Meeting: 08.06.2015.

Report Title: Review of Premises licence. Zar Zar Bar, Queens Road, Hastings.

Report By: Mike Hepworth
Head of Environmental Services

Purpose of Report

To consider an application to review the Premises Licence as a result of 
representations received.
Responsible Authorities.  Three.
Interested Parties. One.

Recommendation(s)

1. Members consider the content of the report, the options available and reach a 
decision. 

Reasons for Recommendations

The Licensing Act 2003 requires a licensing sub committee to consider such 
applications when appropriate representations have been made. The decision reached 
at the sub committee can be subject to appeal at the Magistrates Court by any party to 
the hearing who is aggrieved by the decision.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Report Template v28.0

 

Introduction

1.0 Background

1. On 7th February 2005 the Licensing Act 2003 came into force for all local 
authorities, marking the practical commencement of the Government’s new liquor 
licensing regime.  

2. On the 14th April 2015 Hastings Borough Council received an application for the 
review of an existing premises licence for Zar Zar Bar, 91-92 Queens Road, 
Hastings, TN34 IHL, from Sussex Police District Commander Paul Phelps, made 
under Section 51 the Licensing Act 2003. (Attached at Appendix A).

3. Zar Zar Bar has operated in Queens Road, Hastings under its current name and 
licence holder since July 2012, the premises licence holder being Mr Nigel Lewes 
trading as Zar Zar Bar Ltd. (Attached map Appendix B).  

4. The premises currently holds a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 
(Attached Appendix C).

5. The existing premises licence covers the use of the premises for live music, 
recorded music, late night refreshment and the supply by retail of alcohol.

6. It currently operates under trading hours that vary according to the type of 
licensable activity and the day of the week. The opening hours for the premises 
being Monday to Sunday 09.00 to 03.00, however different hours exist for each 
licensable activity on the licence. In addition the licence hours are extended on all 
bank holidays, Christmas and New Year to the terminal hour of Saturdays. 

2.0 Application 

7. The grounds for review made by Sussex Police are under the licensing objectives 
"The Prevention of Crime and Disorder" and "The Prevention of Public Nuisance", I 
have considered the application and consider it valid and in line with the central 
government guidance issued on such matters.

8. In their application they refer to a series of 14 incidents over past 12 months 
several of which have resulted in persons sustaining injuries, they also comment 
extensively about the poor management of the premises by the licence holder and 
his staff. They seek a minimum of 4(four) weeks suspension of the licence and a 
series of 6 (six) conditions to be added to the licence.

9. When submitting an application for a review under the Licensing Act 2003 the 
applicant is required to send copies of the review application to the other 
responsible authorities listed under the Act and a copy to the premises licence 
holder, this has been done.

10. In addition, the licensing authority is required to place a copy of the notice on the 
premises concerned and the public notice board situated at the Town Hall this has 
been done, in addition the review notification has been placed on the Council 

Page 10



Report Template v28.0

website. These notices must remain in place for 28 days to allow further 
representations to be made.

11. An application for review cannot be considered by the Council's Licensing Sub-
Committee until the 28 day representation period has elapsed, in this case that 
ended at midnight on the 12th May 2015.

3.0     Consultation 

12. As a result of this consultation period, the Authority has received further 
representations from two other responsible authorities. Mr John Ballam, 
Environmental Protection Officer, comments on the existing noise problems around 
the premises involved under the licensing objective "The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance", this is considered valid under the government guidance. Mr Trevor 
Scrase, Senior Licensing Officer of Hastings Borough Council comments about the 
history of the premises, the failure of the management to engage with the Authority 
and issues found on his visits to the premises under the licensing objectives 
"Prevention of Crime and Disorder" and "Prevention of Public nuisance", this is 
considered valid under government guidance (Attached appendix D).

13. A further representation has been received in the form of an e mail from a local 
business, they comment on the ongoing problems with the premises and the effect 
it is having on the residents and passers-by. (Attached Appendix D). 

4.0 Legal Considerations

14. The Licensing Act 2003 is now the only process to licence and control premises for 
all forms of entertainment, late night refreshment and the sale of Alcohol.

15. The review process is laid down in statute and allows for representations to be 
made by specified groups of people provided they are relevant to one or more of 
the licensing objectives listed in the Act and are not considered frivolous, vexatious 
or repetitive. 

16. If a relevant representation is made by either a responsible authority or an 
interested party, a hearing must be held. 

17. The Department for Culture, Media and Sport has issued guidance under Section 
182 of the Licensing Act 2003.  This guidance is provided to Licensing Authorities 
to assist them in carrying out their functions.

18. Hastings Borough Council has developed, published and reviewed its Statement of 
Licensing Policy as required by the Licensing Act 2003.  

19. All members of the Licensing Committee have been supplied with copies of the 
DCMS Government guidance and the Hastings Borough Council Statement of 
Licensing Policy.

20. Human rights considerations must be taken into account fully in balancing licensing 
issues, in particular, Article 1 of the first protocol and article 8.  Article 1 relates to 
the protection of property and the peaceful enjoyment of possessions and property.  
Holding a justices licence would be considered a possession.  Article 8 relates to 

Page 11



Report Template v28.0

the right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence.  These 
are however qualified rights and can be deprived of “in the public interest”.  
Interference is permissible if what is done:-

21. Has its basis in law;

22. Is necessary in a democratic society to fulfil a pressing need or pursue a legitimate 
aim;

23. Is proportionate to the aims being pursued; and, 

24. Is related to the prevention of crime; or, the protection of public order or health.

25. The licence holder has a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court against any 
decisions made by the licensing Sub-Committee with respect to this application for 
review. 

5.0 Options

26. To modify the conditions of the licence.

27. To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence.

28. To remove the designated premises supervisor.

29. To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months.

30. To revoke the licence.

Members are reminded they must give written reasons for their decision, to ensure that 
the appeal procedure can be progressed.

Wards Affected

Castle

Policy Implications

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) Yes
Risk Management No
Environmental Issues No
Economic/Financial Implications No
Human Rights Act Yes
Organisational Consequences No
Local People’s Views No
Anti-Poverty No

Page 12



Report Template v28.0

Additional Information

Appendix A. Application for review.
Appendix B. Map of Venue.
Appendix C. Copy of current licence.
Appendix D. Additional representations (Mr Ballam, Mr Scrase)

Officer to Contact

Bob Brown Licensing Manager
bbrown@hastings.gov.uk
01424 783249

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Title:
Scale: 1:1250

appandix B zar ZAr Bar

Date: 13 / 5 / 2015

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material w ith the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's 

Stationery Office © Crow n Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction inf ringes Crow n copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 

Licence Number: 100021328 2012.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



PREMISES LICENCE

Premises licence number

Part 1 – Premises details

Licensing Act 2003

HOP 50421

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

ZAR ZAR BAR
91 – 92 QUEENS ROAD

Post Town  Post Code 
HASTINGS, EAST SUSSEX TN34 1HL

Telephone number None given

Where the licence is time limited the dates 
NONE

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
LIVE MUSIC
RECORDED MUSIC
PROVISION OF FACILITIES FOR MAKING MUSIC
PROVISION OF LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT
SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

 LIVE MUSIC SUNDAY – WEDNESDAY 09.00 – 23.00 
THURSDAY – SATURDAY 09.00 – 00.00

RECORDED MUSIC MONDAY – SUNDAY 09.00 – 02.00

PROVISION OF FACILITIES FOR MAKING MUSIC SUNDAY – WEDNESDAY 09.00 – 23.00 
THURSDAY – SATURDAY 09.00 – 00.00

PROVISION OF LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT MONDAY – SUNDAY 23.00 – 03.00
(NOT TAKEAWAY)

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL MONDAY – SUNDAY 09.00 – 02.30

ON ALL BANK HOLIDAYS (EXCEPT CHRISTMAS) TO INCLUDE THE PRECEDING DAY (AT EASTER TO ALSO 
INCLUDE THE PRECEDING THURSDAY).
FOR CHRISTMAS (TO INCLUDE CHRISTMAS EVE) AND NEW YEARS EVE UP TO THE TERMINAL HOUR SET 
FOR SATURDAYS

The opening hours of the premises
MONDAY – SUNDAY 09.00 – 03.00
ON ALL BANK HOLIDAYS (EXCEPT CHRISTMAS) TO INCLUDE THE PRECEDING DAY (AT EASTER TO ALSO 
INCLUDE THE PRECEDING THURSDAY).
FOR CHRISTMAS (TO INCLUDE CHRISTMAS EVE) AND NEW YEARS EVE UP TO THE TERMINAL HOUR SET 
FOR SATURDAYS

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies 

SALE BY RETAIL OF ALCOHOL FOR CONSUMPTION ON AND OFF THE PREMISES 

Page 29



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL
Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence 

NIGEL LEWIS
91 – 92 QUEENS ROAD
HASTINGS,
TN34 1RL

(Change of Limited Company on 8th May 2013)

(Transfer, change of trading name and change DPS on 23rd July 2012)

(Change of licence holder name 8th November 2013)

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)  

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence 
authorises for the supply of alcohol 

JASON BURGESS
60 BOHEMIA ROAD
ST. LEONARDS ON SEA
TN37 6RQ. 

(Change of DPS on 27th March 2015)
(Change of DPS address on 2nd December 2013) 
(Change of DPS on 8th November 2013)

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol
 
PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER: HO20298

ISSUING AUTHORITY: HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Page 30



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 1 – Mandatory Conditions 

1) If this premises licence authorises the supply/sale of alcohol, the following two conditions 

apply: 

(i) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence at a time when there 

is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or at a time 

when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his 

personal licence is suspended. 

(ii) Every supply/sale of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised 

by a person who holds a personal licence 

2) If this premises licence authorises the exhibition of films the admission of children to the 

exhibition of any film must be restricted in accordance with this section. 

Hastings Borough Council will expect the age restrictions of the British Board of Film 

Classification (BBFC) or authority designated under Section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 

1984 to be complied with.  Only in exceptional cases will variations of this general rule be 

granted by the Council and then only with the appropriate safeguards

3) If this premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals 

must be at the premises to carry out a security activity (as defined by the Private Security 

Industry Act 2001) then such individuals must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.  

Page 31



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 1A – Additional mandatory licensing conditions.
In accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014.
Effective from the 28th May 2014.

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 –
(a) ‘duty’ is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979 (a);
(b) ‘permitted price’ is the price found by applying the formula – P = D (D x V)
Where – 
(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on 

the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added 

tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
( c )    ‘relevant person’ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
premises licence –
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a 

licence;
(d) ‘relevant person’ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club 
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which 
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e)  ‘value added tax’ means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax 
Act 1994 (b).     

In accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) (Amendment) 
Order 2014, with effect from the 1st October 2014

1. The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange 
or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale 
or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises-
a. Games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 

encourage, individuals to -
i. Drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied 

on the premises before cessation of the period in which the responsible person is 
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

ii. Drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);
b. Provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or fixed or discounted fee to 

the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a 
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

c. Provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward 
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner 
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

d. Selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the 
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or 
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable 
manner;

e. Dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that 
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).Page 32



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 1A – Additional mandatory licensing conditions.

2. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 
customer where it is reasonably available.

3.      (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol.
     (2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises to the premises licence 
must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age 
verification policy.
     (3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, 
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either-

(a) A holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

4. The responsible person must ensure that –
(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in 
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to 
customers in the following measures –

(i) beer or cider:1/2 pint;
(ii)gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125ml:

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which 
is available to customers on the premises; and
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

 

 

 

Page 33



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 

GENERAL
Operate the premises in line with the recommendations of the Portman Group Prove it ID scheme.

Licensed area under supervision from bar. 

Advice posters displayed re alcohol consumption.

THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER
Ensure staff challenge customers who are visibly drunk or intimidating and refuse them service.

Staff trained in conflict resolution, due diligence.

Work in conjunction with local partnerships ie. Police and “Bar Watch” scheme.

Last orders taken 40 minutes before closing. Food always available. Music turned off and lights on 20 
minutes before closing.

PUBLIC SAFETY
Ensure all fire exits and extinguishers are regularly and properly maintained.

Ensure staff are trained in fire procedures, and routinely tested.

Ensure fire resistant bins are provided in the seating area, behind bar and outside the premises for 
food packaging waste.

Advice notices are displayed encouraging responsible drinking and warning of the dangers of over 
consumption.

To ensure head counts are routinely taken on occasions of events to remain with the capacity limit of 
45 persons maximum on the premises at any one time

THE PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE
At the end of the consultation period the applicant accepted the following condition requested 
by the Principal Environmental Health Noise Pollution Officer:-

 The premises shall be operated as a café encouraging light alcohol consumption;

 Clear and prominent notices requesting patrons to ‘Please consider our neighbours and 
be quiet when outside and when going home’, shall be displayed at the exit. 

Most events to be finished by midnight, during the week and at 01.00am on Friday & Saturday.

The following condition as agreed with the Interim Principal Environmental Health Officer:-
1) Noise and music arising from the premises shall not be audible in any residential 

premises. For the avoidance of doubt, noise shall include that arising from all 
mechanical or electrical equipment used by the premises and that noise arising from 
customers in the premises;

Page 34



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 

THE PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE  continued

2) A responsible member of staff shall be in attendance in the vicinity of the exit from 
23.00 hours until close of business each evening to ensure that patrons disperse quietly 
and quickly;

3) The proprietor shall provide and maintain suitable and sufficient litter bin(s) outside the 
premises during opening hours and shall, at the close of business each night, cause the 
street for a 200 metre radius of the premises to be checked for and cleared of all litter 
that may have arisen as a consequence of the business. If desired these measures may 
be undertaken in conjunction with the proprietors of other similar establishments in the
vicinity, but, in any event the Licensing Manager shall be advised in writing and approve 
of the arrangements made and any subsequent change in those.

THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM
Persons under 18yrs only permitted in the premise with a recognised responsible adult.

No children permitted on the premises after 22:00hrs, except for private parties until midnight.

Strict policy displayed ‘ If you look under 21 you will be asked to prove you are 18’.
Only accept photographic evidence as proof of age, ie. Passport, driving licence, Portman approved 
id cards.

HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

Nil

Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Sub Committee Procedures
1. The Chair’s Introduction and Explanation of the Procedure, which will be followed 

 Introduce Members and Officers and invite the applicant, objectors and any 
representatives to the table, asking them to introduce themselves.

 Explain that the hearing will follow a procedure, and that is that the Officer will make his 
report, followed by the Consultees such as the Police and then the Objectors and finally 
the Applicant. There will be an opportunity for questions. Members may ask for 
clarification from the Licensing Officer and Summaries may be given if required.

 Ask if the Parties received the report and are ready to proceed. 
  If any Party to the hearing fails to attend ask Members to consider whether to adjourn 

the hearing or to proceed in the Party’s absence.

The Hearing of each application will then follow the order set out below:

2. Summary of report by Licensing Manager / Officer.

3. Statutory Consultees (eg Police, Fire Service, Environmental Health) submissions on 
the application.  
Any questions for Statutory Consultees from
 Applicant / Representative?
 Objectors?
 Officers?
 Members?

4. Other Objectors each make submissions on the application.  
Any questions for Objectors from
 Applicant / Representative?
 Statutory Consultee?
 Officers?
 Members?

5. Applicant / Representative make submissions on the application / call any witnesses. 
Any Questions for Applicant / Representative / Witnesses from
 Statutory Consultees and Objectors?
 Officers?
 Members?

6. Do Members require any clarification from the Licensing Manager / Officer?
If clarification given, questions on clarification only from:
 Applicant / Representative?
 Statutory Consultees and Objectors?
 Members?

7. Summaries (if required)
 Licensing Manager / Officer summing up 
 Statutory Consultees and Objectors’ summing up 
 Applicant/Representative summing up 

8. Decision Making
 Members retire to discuss the application, propose and second a recommendation and 

vote on this. 
 They may take legal advice from the Legal Advisor.  The Legal Advisor will advise the 

Parties of any legal advice given to the sub-committee.  No other person may retire with 
the Sub-committee.

 The decision is announced by the Chair giving full reasons for the decision, together with 
any conditions, which are to be attached to the grant of the licence or the reasons for a 
refusal of the application. 

Page 61

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank



 Report Template v28.0

Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee

Date of Meeting: 8th June 2015

Report Title: Application for a Premises licence with representations. Grand 
Elektra, 53-57 Robertson Street, Hastings. 

Report By: Mike Hepworth
Head of Environmental Services

Purpose of Report

To consider the application for a new premises licence as a result of representations 
received.
Responsible Authorities.Four.  
Interested Parties.One.

Recommendation(s)

1. Members consider the content of the report, the options available and reach a 
decision.      

Reasons for Recommendations

The Licensing Act 2003 requires a licensing sub committee to consider such 
applications when appropriate representations have been made. The decision reached 
at the sub committee can be subject to appeal by any party to the hearing who is 
aggreived by the decision.

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



Report Template v28.0

 

Introduction

1.0 Background History

1. On 7th February 2005 the Licensing Act 2003 came into force for all local 
authorities, marking the practical commencement of the Government’s new liquor 
licensing regime. 

2. On the 13th April 2015 Hastings Borough Council received an application for a new 
premises licence for the ground floor and basement of 53 - 57 Robertson Street, 
Hastings from Woodfines Solicitors on behalf of Invest Nightlife Ltd, GPG House, 
Walker Avenue, Wolverton Mill, Milton Keynes. MK12 5TW, made under section 17 
the Licensing Act 2003. (Attached at Appendix A).

3. This premises is a new venture but is on the site of the old West Exit Club and 
Electric Stag Bar in Robertson Street, those licences having lapsed, following the 
operating company going into voluntary liquidation in March 2015. (Map attached at 
Appendix B.)

4. The premise is located within Area 1 (Town centre) of the Council Special 
Saturation Policy (Cumulative Impact).

2.0 Application 

5. The application requests the following: 

6. To have performance of plays, films, live music, recorded music, dance, anything 
similar to music and dance and supply of Alcohol (on and off sales), Monday to 
Thursday 11.00 hrs to 03.00hrs, Friday and Saturday 11.00hrs to 04.00hrs and 
Sunday 11.00hrs to 02.00hrs.

7. To have late night refreshment, Monday to Thursday 23.00hrs to 03.00 hrs, Friday 
and Saturday 23.00hrs to 04.00hrs and Sunday 23.00hrs to 02.00hrs.

8. To have opening hours of the premises, Monday to Thursday 08.00 hrs to 
03.30hrs, Friday and Saturday 08.00hrs to 04.30hrs and Sunday 08.00 to 02.30hrs.

9. In addition, under all licensable activities, to have the hours agreed extended to 
08.00hrs to 04.00hrs on Thursday preceding Good Friday and Sundays preceding 
Bank Holiday Mondays. On New Year's Eve to extend the hours to 08.00hrs to 
06.00hrs.

10. .When submitting an application for a licence under the Licensing Act 2003 the 
applicant is asked to describe what steps they intend to take to promote the four 
licensing objectives:-

 the prevention of crime and disorder,

 public safety, 

Page 64



Report Template v28.0

 prevention of public nuisance,

 protection of children from harm.

11. In this case the applicant has made a full declaration on the pages in section M of 
the application.(See appendix A)

3.0     Consultation 

12. The Licensing Act 2003 requires an applicant to advertise their application once in 
a local newspaper and on the premises by way of an approved notice for 28 days 
to allow for representations to be made, this has been done. 

13. Copies of the application are required to be served on a list of responsible 
authorities at the same time as placing the application before the local authority, 
this has been done. This process has resulted in 5 (five) representations being 
received by the Authority. 

14. A representation has been received from Ch Insp Phelps, Hastings Police 
Commander, Sussex Police, he comments on the application and the history of the 
premises commenting on the new layout which combines two premises that were 
separately licenced in the past. He also comments on the applicant's failure to 
demonstrate adequately that there will be no negative cumulative impact, as the 
premises is within the town centre saturation zone. Sussex police invite the 
subcommittee to refuse the application. I consider this a valid representation under 
the licensing objectives (Prevention of crime and Disorder and Prevention of Public 
Nuisance) (Attached Appendix C.)

15. A further representation has been received from Mr Ballam, Environmental 
Protection Officer (Pollution), he comments on the past problems of the area and 
the fact that the town centre has presented an unacceptable noise level to 
residents late at night. He comments on the application and its potential for 
considerable noise from customers as a result of its extended opening hours. He 
comments about the Special Saturation Policy and the fact that the applicant has 
failed to demonstrate that there will be no negative cumulative impact and as a 
result recommends refusal. I consider this to be valid representation under the 
licensing objective (Prevention of Public Nuisance). (Attached Appendix C). 

16. A representation form Mr Trevor Scrase, Senior Licensing Officer, Hastings 
Borough Council comments on the application and the previous history of the 
premises, he also comments that the applicant has failed to demonstrate that the 
extended hours of the premises will not undermine the licensing objectives, which 
is situated in the town centre saturation area. (Attached appendix C).  

17. A representation has been received from East Sussex Fire and Rescue Service, 
they comment on the lack of information supplied to them by the applicant and as a 
result they are unable to judge as to whether the licensing objective of "Public 
Safety" has been adequately addressed. (Attached appendix C). 

18. A letter of representation has been received from a local resident in Cambridge 
Road, Hastings, she comments on the past noise problems with the premises and 
the potential for this to increase with the extended hours. I consider this to be a 
valid representation. (Attached appendix C).

Page 65



Report Template v28.0

19. The Special Saturation Policy (Cumulative Impact) is contained within the Council's 
Licensing Policy; it states "Each application will be considered on its own merit. 
Where no representations are received any application will be granted in terms 
consistent with the operating schedule. Where relevant representations are 
received in relation to applications for the grant of a new premise licence, club 
premise certificate or provisional statement; there will be a presumption against the 
grant of such licence or certificate unless the applicant, in the operating schedule, 
can rebut the presumption that the granting of such a licence or certificate would 
undermine the licensing objectives." Applicants are advised to seek legal advice if 
making an application for a licence in a Special Saturation Area. 

20. The applicants did meet with officers from Hastings Borough Council Licensing and 
Sussex Police in March and the situation in respect of the saturation area was 
explained in greater detail.

21. In addition, the applicant included a letter of support from a local Councillor with 
their application. Whilst this does not form part of the laid down licensing process it 
is attached for information. (Appendix D)

4.0 Legal Considerations

22. The Licensing Act 2003 is now the only legislation that allows premises to be 
licensed for either the sale of Alcohol or the supply of regulated entertainment. 

23. If a relevant representation to an application is made by either a responsible 
authority or an interested party and no compromise can be reached between the 
parties, a hearing must be held. 

24. The Department for Culture, Media and Sport has issued guidance under Section 
182 of the Licensing Act 2003.  This guidance is provided to Licensing Authorities 
to assist them in carrying out their functions.  

25. All members of the Licensing Committee have been supplied with copies of the 
DCMS Government guidance and the Hastings Borough Council Statement of 
Licensing Policy.

26. Human rights considerations must be taken into account fully in balancing licensing 
issues, in particular, Article 1 of the first protocol and article 8.  Article 1 relates to 
the protection of property and the peaceful enjoyment of possessions and property.    
Article 8 relates to the right to respect for private and family life, home and 
correspondence.  These are however qualified rights and can be deprived of “in the 
public interest”.  Interference is permissible if what is done:-

27. Has its basis in law;

28. Is necessary in a democratic society to fulfil a pressing need or pursue a legitimate 
aim;

29. Is proportionate to the aims being pursued; and, 

30. Is related to the prevention of crime; or, the protection of public order or health.

Page 66



Report Template v28.0

31. If members chose to refuse the application in full or in part, the applicant has a right 
of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court. There is also a right of appeal to conditions 
imposed as a result of the hearing by any person affected by the decision. 

5.0 Options

32. Grant the application in full

33. Grant part of the application

34. Grant the application with conditions relevant to the application

35. Refuse the application.

Wards Affected

Castle

Policy Implications

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) Yes
Risk Management No
Environmental Issues Yes
Economic/Financial Implications No
Human Rights Act Yes
Organisational Consequences No
Local People’s Views No
Anti-Poverty No

Additional Information

Appendix A. Application for licence.
Appendix B. Map of location.
Appendix C. Representations.
Appendix D. Letter of support.

Officer to Contact

Bob Brown. Licensing Manager.
bbrown@hastings.gov.uk
01424 783249

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Title:
Scale: 1:2500

Appendix B

Date: 15 / 5 / 2015

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material w ith the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's 

Stationery Office © Crow n Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction inf ringes Crow n copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 

Licence Number: 100021328 2012.

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 12 January 2015
	 
	6 Application for the Review of a Premises Licence: Zar Zar Bar, 91-92 Queens Road, Hastings
	Appendix A - Application for Review, Zar Zar Bar
	Appendix B - Map of venue, Zar Zar Bar
	Appendix C - Copy of current Premises Licence, Zar Zar Bar
	Appendix D - Additional Representations, Zar Zar Bar

	 
	7 Application for a Premises Licence:  Grand Elektra, 53-57 Robertson Street, Hastings
	Appendix A - Application for a Premises Licence, Grand Elektra
	Appendix B - Map of venue, Grand Elektra
	Appendix C - Additional Representations, Grand Elektra
	Appendix D - Letter of Support, Grand Elektra


